
FishHawk Community 
Development District IV 

Board of Supervisors’ 
Regular Meeting  
January 08, 2019 

District Office: 
9428 Camden Field Parkway 

Riverview, Florida 33578 
813.533.2950 

www.fishhawkcdd4.org 



FISHHAWK  
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT IV  

 
Lake House of FishHawk Ranch West 6001 Village Center Drive Lithia, Florida 33547 

 
Board of Supervisors  Dayna Kennington  Chairman 
     Daniel Rothrock  Vice Chairman 
     Randy Appenzeller  Assistant Secretary 
     Jeffrey Stewart  Assistant Secretary   
     Brian Steever  Assistant Secretary 
 
District Manager   Christine Perkins  Rizzetta & Company, Inc. 
 
District Counsel   Erin McCormick  Erin McCormick Law, PA 
 
District Engineer   Tim Plate   Heidt Design, LLC 

 
All Cellular phones and pagers must be turned off during the meeting. 

 
The Audience Comment portion of the agenda is where individuals may make comments 
on matters that concern the District. Individuals are limited to a total of three (3) minutes 
to make comments during this time. 
 
Pursuant to provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special 
accommodations to participate in this meeting/hearing/workshop is asked to advise the 
District Office at least forty-eight (48) hours before the meeting/hearing/workshop by 
contacting the District Manager at (813) 533-2950. If you are hearing or speech impaired, 
please contact the Florida Relay Service by dialing 7-1-1, or 1-800-955-8771 (TTY)  
1-800-955-8770 (Voice), who can aid you in contacting the District Office. 
 
A person who decides to appeal any decision made at the meeting/hearing/workshop with 
respect to any matter considered at the meeting/hearing/workshop is advised that person 
will need a record of the proceedings and that accordingly, the person may need to 
ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made including the testimony and 
evidence upon which the appeal is to be based. 

 



FISHHAWK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT IV 
DISTRICT OFFICE • 9428 CAMDEN FIELD PARKWAY • RIVERVIEW, FL 33578 

www.fishhawkcdd4.org 
 
Board of Supervisors       January 7, 2019 
FishHawk Community  
Development District IV 
      

REVISED AGENDA 
Dear Board Members: 
 

The Regular meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the FishHawk Community 
Development District IV will be held on Tuesday, January 8, 2019 at 9:00 a.m., at the Lake 
House of FishHawk Ranch West, located at 6001 Village Center Drive, Lithia, Florida 33547. 
The following is the tentative agenda for this meeting: 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL 
2. AUDIENCE COMMENTS 
3.  CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS/BUSINESS ADMINISTRATION  

A. Consideration of the Minutes of the Board of Supervisors 
 Regular Meeting held on December 11, 2018 .........................Tab 1 
B.  Consideration of Operations & Maintenance Expenditures 
 for November 2018 .................................................................Tab 2 
C. Ratification Series 2013 Requisition #358 ...............................Tab 3  

4.  STAFF REPORTS 
  A. Field Services Manager 
   1. Presentation of December 2018  
    Field Inspection Report  .....................................................Tab 4 
  B. Aquatic Systems 
   1. Presentation of December 2018 Aquatic Systems  
    Inspection Report ...............................................................Tab 5 
  C. District Counsel 
  D. District Engineer  
  E. Amenities Manager 
  F. District Manager  
 5. BUSINESS ITEMS   
  A. Consideration of Conveyances from NNP-IV Lake Hutto, 
   LLC to the CDD 
   1. FishHawk Ranch West Gopher Tortoise CE and Wetland CA 
    Tract B-19 in Phases 1B/1C, 2A/2B, & 4A 
    a. Bill of Sale ....................................................................Tab 6  
    b. Deed .............................................................................Tab 7 
  B. Ratification of Wall Easement Agreement ...............................Tab 8 
  C.  Consideration of Proposal for Roundabout Repairs  
   from Standard Brick Pavers  ...................................................Tab 9 
  D. Discussion of District Amenities Policies .................................Tab 10 

 6.  SUPERVISOR REQUESTS 
7. ADJOURNMENT 

 
 
 

http://www.fishhawkcdd4.org/


FishHawk Community Development District IV 
January 8, 2019 Agenda 

We look forward to seeing you at the meeting.  In the meantime, if you have any 
questions, please do not hesitate to call us at (813) 533-2950. 

With Warm Regards, 

Christine Perkins 
Christine Perkins 
District Manager 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Tab 1 



FISHHAWK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT IV 
December 11, 2018 Minutes of Meeting 

Page 1   
MINUTES OF MEETING 1 

 2 
Each person who decides to appeal any decision made by the Board with respect to any 3 
matter considered at the meeting is advised that the person may need to ensure that a 4 
verbatim record of the proceedings is made, including the testimony and evidence upon 5 
which such appeal is to be based. 6 
 7 

FISHHAWK 8 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT IV 9 

 10 
 The Regular meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the FishHawk Community 11 
Development District IV was held on Tuesday, December 11, 2018 at 9:00 a.m. at the 12 
Lake House of FishHawk Ranch West, located at 6001 Village Center Drive, Lithia, 13 
Florida, 33547.  14 
 15 
 Present and constituting a quorum were: 16 
 17 
  Randy Appenzeller  Board Supervisor, Vice Chairman  18 
  Dayna Kennington  Board Supervisor, Assistant Secretary 19 
  Rick Stevens   Board Supervisor, Assistant Secretary  20 
  Daniel Rothrock  Board Supervisor, Assistant Secretary   21 
   22 
 Also present were: 23 
 24 
  Christine Perkins  District Manager; Rizzetta & Company, Inc. 25 
  Brian Radcliff   District Manager; Rizzetta & Company, Inc. 26 
  John Toborg   Field Services Manager; Rizzetta  27 
  Erin McCormick  District Counsel; Eric McCormick Law  28 
  Lara Bartholomew  District Engineer; Heidt Design (via phone) 29 

Deneen Klenke Amenities Manager 30 
  Dana Bryant   Sunrise Landscape 31 
  Kyle Scroggins  Signal 88 Security 32 
  33 
  Audience 34 
 35 
FIRST ORDER OF BUSINESS Call to Order 36 
 37 
 Ms. Perkins called the meeting to order and read the roll call.    38 
 39 
SECOND ORDER OF BUSINESS Audience Comments 40 
 41 
 There were no audience comments.  42 
 43 
THIRD ORDER OF BUSINESS Consent Agenda Items/Business 44 

Administration 45 
 46 

A. Consideration of the Minutes of the Board of Supervisors’ Regular  47 
Meeting held on November 13, 2018 48 

 49 
B. Consideration of Operation & Maintenance Expenditures for  50 

October 2018 ($94,362.83)  51 
 52 



FISHHAWK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT IV 
December 11, 2018 Minutes of Meeting 

Page 2   
C. Ratification of Construction Requisition #357 53 
 54      

REQUISITION NO. 
 

PAYEE 
 

AMOUNT 

357 Erin McCormick Law, PA $2,380 
 55 

On a Motion by Mr. Stevens, seconded by Ms. Kennington, with all in favor, the Board of 
Supervisors approved the Consent Agenda Items A - C for FishHawk Community 
Development District IV. 

 56 
FOURTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Staff Reports 57 
 58 

A. Field Services Manager 59 
1. November 2018 Field Inspection Report 60 

 61 
Mr. Toborg reviewed the November 2018 Field Inspection Report for the 62 
Board, reviewing several items, which included resident’s utilization of District 63 
property for access of constructing pools which have caused considerable 64 
damage to turf and irrigation.  Ms. Perkins verified that several residents have 65 
signed agreements with the District that authorizes them to access District 66 
property with the understanding that they would subsequently be responsible 67 
for making any necessary repairs to return District property to its original state.  68 
Mr. Toborg also reviewed several key areas of turf conditions and declining 69 
plant material.   70 

  71 
2. Consideration of Proposals from Sunrise Landscape 72 

  73 
1.) Florida Red Flame Maple ($3,562.50) 74 

   75 
Discussion ensued about the location of the replacement Florida Red 76 
Flame Maple Oak Trees and the need to replace two due to being 77 
required street trees.  Ms. Perkins requested a revised proposal be 78 
sent to reflect the pricing of the two trees.   79 

  80 
2.) Parsons Juniper ($2,650.00)  81 

 82 
Mr. Toborg reviewed that the flax lily was declining throughout the 83 
District and thus it was recommended to be replaced with parsons 84 
juniper.  The consensus was that this proposal was not an immediate 85 
need to be addressed.   86 

 87 
   3.) Roundabout Replanting I ($1,725.00) 88 
   89 

4.)  Roundabout Replanting II ($1,925.00) 90 
 91 

Discussion ensued about the two roundabout replanting proposals and 92 
their locations along Village Center Drive, the type of plant material that 93 
would best thrive, and the desire of the Board to include some more 94 
color.   95 
 96 
 97 



FISHHAWK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT IV 
December 11, 2018 Minutes of Meeting 

Page 3   
    98 

On a Motion by Mr. Stevens, seconded by Mr. Rothrock, with all in favor, the Board of 
Supervisors approved a revised landscape enhancement proposal for the replacement of 
two Florida Red Flame Maples from Sunrise Landscape for FishHawk Community 
Development District IV. 

 99 
On a Motion by Mr. Appenzeller, seconded by Mr. Stevens, with all in favor, the Board of 
Supervisors approved Landscape Enhancement Proposals for Roundabout Replanting I 
($1,745.00), and Roundabout Replanting II ($1,925.00) from Sunrise Landscape for 
FishHawk Community Development District IV. 

 100 
 101 

B. Aquatic Systems 102 
 1. November 2018 Aquatic Systems Inspection Report 103 

 104 
Ms. Perkins presented the November 2018 Aquatics Systems Inspection 105 
Report to the Board.  There were no questions from the Board.   106 

 107 
C. District Counsel  108 

  109 
Ms. McCormick presented a Brick Wall Easement Agreement for the East 110 
Side of Circa FishHawk Blvd and reviewed its contents for the Board (Exhibit 111 
A).  Ms. McCormick additionally remarked that the District Engineer would 112 
ensure its in good working condition before being transferred and the 113 
Developer would convey ownership via a Bill of Sale.   114 
 115 

On a Motion by Mr. Stevens, seconded by Mr. Appenzeller, with all in favor, the Board of 
Supervisors approved the Brick Wall Easement Agreement in Substantial Form subject to 
final review and approval by District Staff and the Chairman for FishHawk Community 
Development District IV. 

 116 
D. District Engineer 117 

 118 
   Ms. Bartholomew had no report.   119 
  120 

E. Amenities Manager 121 
 122 

Ms. Klenke provided some feedback on Decorating Elves, and Ms. Perkins 123 
also communicated several challenges were encountered with the holiday 124 
decorations, therefore it was not recommended to continue to seek working 125 
with other vendors next holiday season.  Ms. Klenke additionally asked the 126 
Board for their input on security services hours, needs, etc. as there would be 127 
a follow-up meeting with Signal 88 after the CDD meeting had concluded.  128 
Discussion ensued on the general District needs and prospective scheduled 129 
hours.   130 

 131 
F. District Manager 132 

 133 
Ms. Perkins expressed that the next regularly scheduled meeting will be held 134 
on January 08, 2018 at 9:00 A.M.  Ms. Perkins additionally introduced Mr. 135 
Radcliff from Rizzetta & Co., as he would be transitioning into the District over  136 



FISHHAWK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT IV 
December 11, 2018 Minutes of Meeting 

Page 4   
 137 
the next several months to take over as District Manager.   138 

 139 
FIFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Consideration of Conveyances from 140 

NNP-IV Lake Hutto, LLC to the CDD  141 
  142 
 1. FishHawk Ranch West Gopher Tortoise CE & Wetland CA Tract B-19 143 
  In Phases 1B/1C, 2A/2B, & 4A 144 
  a. Bill of Sale 145 
  b. Deed 146 
 147 
  This item was tabled and would be revisited at the January meeting.   148 
 149 
SIXTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Discussion of Board Supervisor 150 

Appointment for Vacant Seats  151 
 152 
 Ms. Perkins had communicated that she had received Mr. Bosarge’s resignation 153 
letter to the District, as his seat was declared vacant until a qualified elector of the District 154 
was identified to be appointed.  Ms. Perkins communicated that she had received materials 155 
from two qualified electors, Mr. Stewart and Mr. Steever for the Board’s consideration.  156 
 157 

On a Motion by Mr. Stevens, seconded by Mr. Appenzeller, with all in favor, the Board of 
Supervisors appointed Mr. Jeff Stewart to Seat #5 for FishHawk Community Development 
District IV. 

 158 
On a Motion by Ms. Kennington, seconded by Mr. Rothrock, with all in favor, the Board of 
Supervisors accepted Mr. Stevens resignation from the Board of Supervisors for FishHawk 
Community Development District IV. 

 159 
On a Motion by Mr. Rothrock, seconded by Ms. Kennington, with all in favor, the Board of 
Supervisors appointed Mr. Brian Steever to Seat #4 for FishHawk Community 
Development District IV. 

 160 
SEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Administer Oath of Office to Newly 161 

Appointed Supervisors  162 
1. Consideration of Compensation  163 
2. Review of Chapter 190 FL Statues  164 
3. Review of Sunshine Laws and Code of Ethics for Public Officers and Employees 165 

 166 
 Ms. Perkins, a notary of the State of Florida, administered the Oath of Office to Mr. 167 
Stewart, who also replied in the affirmative in receiving compensation for his role.  Ms. 168 
McCormick reviewed Chapter 190 FL Statues as well as several important items under the 169 
Sunshine Laws and Code of Ethics.   170 
 171 
 Mr. Steever would be notified that he was appointed to the Board and thus would be 172 
sworn in at the next meeting.   173 
 174 
 175 

 176 
 177 
 178 



FISHHAWK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT IV 
December 11, 2018 Minutes of Meeting 

Page 5   
 179 

EIGHTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Consideration of Resolution 2019-02, 180 
Designating Officers of the District  181 

  182 
 Discussion ensued about the Board Supervisor Roles, and it was the consensus of 183 
the Board to have Ms. Kennington serve as Chairman, Mr. Rothrock as Vice Chairman, as 184 
well as Mr. Appenzeller, Mr. Stewart, and Mr. Steever as Assistant Secretaries.   185 
 186 
   187 

On a Motion by Mr. Rothrock, seconded by Ms. Stewart, with all in favor, the Board of 
Supervisors adopted Resolution 2019-02, Designating Officers of the District for FishHawk 
Community Development District IV. 

 188 
NINTH ORDER OF BUSINESS  Supervisor Requests  189 
 190 
 Mr. Stewart discussed the development changes within Encore that impacted the 191 
number of total units, as well as provided the update that the 2019 Encore budget was 192 
approved.  Mr. Stewart additionally inquired about land use zoning and the impact of the 193 
change in units, as it would provide additional operation and maintenance revenue to the 194 
District.  Mr. Stewart also asked about the process of reporting landscaping issues, which 195 
could be reported to the District Manager.   196 
 197 
 198 
TENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS  Adjournment  199 
 200 
On a Motion by Mr. Rothrock, seconded by Ms. Kennington, with all in favor, the Board of 
Supervisors adjourned the meeting at 9:54 a.m. for FishHawk Community Development 
District IV. 

 201 
 202 
_______________________________  ______________________________ 203 
Secretary/Assistant Secretary    Chairman/Vice Chairman 204 



FishHawk CDD IV 

EXHIBIT TO 12-11-18 MINUTES: 
 

Wall Easement Agreement 



























 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Tab 2 



The total items being presented: $92,852.45

Approval of Expenditures:

__________________________________

______Chairperson

______Vice Chairperson

______Assistant Secretary

FISHHAWK IV COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

DISTRICT OFFICE · 9428 CAMDEN FIELD PARKWAY · RIVERVIEW, FL 33578

Operation and Maintenance Expenditures
November 2018

For Board Approval

Attached please find the check register listing the Operation and Maintenance expenditures paid 
from November 1, 2018 through November 30, 2018.  This does not include expenditures 
previously approved by the Board.



Fishhawk IV Community Development District
Paid Operation & Maintenance Expenditures

November 1, 2018 Through November 30, 2018

Vendor Name Check Number Invoice Number Invoice Description Invoice Amount

Aquatic Systems, Inc. 001463 0000426953 Monthly Lake and Wetland Services 11/18 969.00$                

Ballenger & Company, Inc. 001452 18490 SWFWMD Reporting 10/18 775.00$                

Ballenger & Company, Inc. 001464 18508 Irrigation Repairs 11/18 233.97$                

Dayna J. Kennington 001462 DK111318 Board of Supervisors Meeting 11/13/18 200.00$                

Erin McCormick Law, PA 001453 10265 Legal Services 10/18 4,162.03$             

G4S Secure Solutions Inc. 001448 10126167 Security Services 10/09/18-10/14/18 1,895.32$             

G4S Secure Solutions Inc. 001454 10134374 Security Services 10/15/18-10/21/18 1,895.32$             

G4S Secure Solutions Inc. 001460 10145254 Security Services 10/22/18-10/28/18 1,895.32$             

Heidt Design, LLC 001465 30983 Engineering Services 10/18 1,076.25$             

Hillsborough County BOCC 001461 1416996147 10/18 Summary Bill 10/18 137.72$                

Rizzetta & Company, Inc. 001449 INV0000036053 District Management Services 11/18 4,399.67$             

Rizzetta Technology Services 001450 INV0000003872 Website Fees & Maint 11/18 175.00$                

Robert S. Bosarge 001459 RB111318 Board of Supervisors Meeting 11/13/18 200.00$                

Sunrise Landcare Inc. 001451 104187 Fertilizer & Pest Control 09/18 5,854.50$             

Sunrise Landcare Inc. 001466 104235 Landscape Maintenance - 11/18 26,762.00$           

Sunrise Landcare Inc. 001455 104346 Irrigation Repairs 10/18 1,170.18$             

Sunrise Landcare Inc. 001466 104366 Plant Installation 10/18 3,750.00$             

Sunrise Landcare Inc. 001466 104367 Plant Installation 10/18 1,800.50$             

Sunrise Landcare Inc. 001466 104368 Plant Installation 10/18 4,105.00$             

Sunrise Landcare Inc. 001466 104371 Irrigation Repairs 10/18 2,065.00$             

Sunrise Landcare Inc. 001466 104420 Irrigation Repairs 11/18 505.38$                

Tampa Electric Company 001456 211009122667 10/18 Village Center Dr PH 2  10/18 9,634.48$             

Tampa Electric Company 001456 Summary Bill 10/18 Electric Summary Bill 10/18 19,022.81$           



Fishhawk IV Community Development District
Paid Operation & Maintenance Expenditures

November 1, 2018 Through November 30, 2018

Vendor Name Check Number Invoice Number Invoice Description Invoice Amount

Terminix Processing Center 001458 380231388 6001 Village Center Exterior Pest Control 10/18 168.00$                

Report Total 92,852.45$           


	Agenda Page
	Tab 1 - December 11, 2018 Meeting Minutes
	Tab 2 - November 2018 O&M Board Package



